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Sports in my life
People all over the world are fond of sports and games. That is one of the things in which people of any nationality are united. All kinds of physical exercises are useful to make our bodies strong enough to keep ourselves fit and healthy. Physically inactive people fall ill more often and get old earlier than those who have plenty of exercises. If you do daily exercises, you feel refreshed, organized and disciplined, you stay in good shape, you have a good posture.

Even if you don't plan to make a career in sports you still have to practice. Regular exercises give you more energy. That is why many people who suffer from general tiredness should take more exercise.
"A healthy mind in a healthy body" as the old Latin saying goes. The English proverb "Sickness in the body brings sickness to the mind" expresses the same idea from a different point of view.

In winter many people go in for cross-country and alpine skiing, ski jumping, skating, figure skating, ice hockey and so on, but in such warm regions as ours, facilities for these activities are limited. That’s why summer sports, especially swimming, tennis, soccer, basketball, handball, track and field events, gymnastics are more popular in our country. Israeli athletes have won Olympic medals in sailing and judo.
As for me, I prefer swimming. It needs mobility, liveliness and much energy. It keeps a person in a good physical form. I have been swimming since my childhood. When I was 4 years old, Dad literally threw me into the sea, thus making me swim. As a schoolgirl I regularly attended a swimming-pool.
Currently, because of lack of spare time I can’t visit a swimming-pool or going to the seaside as frequently as I would like to. But if I manage to, after a hard working day it gives me wonderful relaxation!
Certainly, there is a huge distance between my manner of swimming and that of great champions, but I get real pleasure whatever my achievements are. Just to participate is not less important than to win a victory.
Sport an important part of life
Sport is an important part of my life. I like to take part in sports competitions. I play in our school football team. I think that it helps me in different ways. First of all sport builds character. It teaches to win and to lose. It makes you strong, fast and patient. More than that it makes men out of boys. Besides it teaches you about life. And it is a good way to meet people, even from other countries. But for it you must be a good sportsman.

I’d rather watch sports competitions. To be a good sportsman doesn’t suit to everyone. 
Many people simply like to support their favourites. What are the competitions for? Since early times they have been held to entertain people. And I think that it is much better to watch sports programmes on TV. You needn’t go to a cold wet stadium, buy tickets. You can sit in a comfortable armchair and enjoy yourself.
Sports and games

We are sure you are all interested in sport. Many of you certainly play such games as volleyball or football, basketball or tennis. People who play a game are players. Players form teams and play matches with other teams — their opponents. Two players playing with each other are partners. Each team can lose or win. In a football match players try to score as many goals as they can. 
Most matches take place in large stadiums. Athletics is the most popular sport. People call it 'the queen of all sports'. It comprises such kinds of sports as: running (for different distances), jumping (long and high jumps) and others.  From time to time international championships and races (horse-races, motor-races, cycle-races) take place. 
Representatives of various countries can win a gold, silver or bronze medal. Such great championships in sport are organized every four years and we call them Olympic Games. Only the best may take part in them. There are so many kinds of sports, such as cycling, swimming, gymnastics, boxing, skating, skiing, rowing, yachting and many more in which you can take an active part or just be a devoted fan.
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English words for some lessons.

To take part in sports competitions. – принимать участив соревнованиях.
To be a good sportsman- быть хорошим спортсменом.
To be a good sportsman doesn’t suit to everyone. – быть хорошим спортсменом дано не каждому.
To support favorites – поддерживать любимцев.
Since early times – давным-давно…
To teach somebody to win and to lose – учить кого-либо побеждать или проигрывать.

To make men out of boys – формировать мужчин из мальчишек.
Read this. - Прочитайте это. 

Speak up. - Высказывайтесь. 

Sit down. - Садитесь. 
Stand up. - Встаньте. 
Ask him. - Спросите у него. 
Say yes. - Скажите да. 

Go on. - Продолжайте. 

Wash up. - Помойте посуду. 

Come on. - Пошли.
 Go slow. - Двигайтесь медленно. 
Not now. - He сейчас.
Never mind. - He беда.
Please do. - Сделайте, пожалуйста.
Hurry up. - Поторапливайтесь.
Quite right. - Совершенно верно.
Look out. - Внимание.

Yes, please. - Да, пожалуйста.

Well done. - Отлично.
What's the news? - Что нового?

What's wrong? - Что-то не так? Или: Что случилось?
Where's that? - Где это?

Where's he? - Где он?
Who's that? - Кто это (там)?
Which one? - Который (из них)?
Where to? - Куда? 
	 
	Example:
	I/play chess/play tennis.
I can play chess but I cannot play tennis.


1. He/run one mile/run five miles.

2.  Tim's father/drive a car/drive a bus.

3.  His mother/cook meat/cook fish.

4.  Pooh/climb an appletree/climb a pinetree.

5.  Old people/walk/run and jump.

6.  The girl/dance/play the guitar.

7.  Ann/ride a pony/ride a horse.

8.  They/speak English/speak Spanish.

9.  We/go there by train/go there by plane.

10.  The teacher/come at four/come at five.

11.  Mr Bliss/ride downhill/ride uphill.

12.  I/ask questions/answer them.
Exercise 3. Make new sentences using too. - Составьте новые предложения, используя too в значении слишком.

	 
	Example:
	The milk is very hot, I cannot drink it.
Молоко очень горячее, я не могу пить его.
The milk is too hot to drink.
Молоко слишком горячее, чтобы его пить.



1. It is cold, we cannot go out.

2.  This goose is very heavy, it cannot fly.

3.  The river is deep, we cannot cross it.

4.  The squirrel is quick, you cannot catch it.

5.  The bag is heavy, you cannot lift it.

6.  The tea is very sweet, I cannot drink it.

7.  The tree is very high, I cannot climb it.

8.  He is old, he cannot do this job.
как). Far [fɑ:] (дальний, далеко) имеет форму farthest ['fɑ:ðist] (самый дальний, дальше всего) в превосходной степени.

2. Существительное back [bæk] (спина) и наречие backwards ['bækwǝdz] (в обратном направлении, назад) однокоренные. Back встречалось нам в составе horseback. Само по себе оно может быть наречием назад, обратно.

Не rides on horseback. - Он ездит верхом.

When will they come back? - Когда они вернутся?

3. Нам уже известен глагол like (любить). И вот "появляется" love [lʌv] - тоже любить. В чем разница? 
Ответ: Like ближе к русскому нравиться.

I like jam. - Я люблю варенье.
We like him. - Он нам нравится.
Love выражает "настоящую" любовь. Слово может быть также существительным. 

I love jumping! - Я очень люблю прыгать!

Exercises – Упражнения
Exercise 1. Answer the questions. - Ответьте на вопросы.

1. Can you cook?

2. Can you speak Spanish?

3. Can your little sister read?

4. Can your mother make jam?

5. Can your father drive?

6. Can tigers fly?

7. Can an owl fly?

8. Can horses climb trees?

9. Can Mr Bliss's pet see?

10. Can dogs talk?

Exercise 2. Make sentences using can and cannot. - Постройте предложения, используя can иcannot, соединяя две части с помощью but (но).

Where from? - Откуда?

What for? - Для чего? Или: Зачем?
What next? - Что дальше?
Why not? - Почему (бы и) нет?
How long? - Как долго?
How much? - Сколько?
Занятие 5.

The Simple Present Простое настоящее


Grammar - Грамматика

Каждый день мы совершаем, в основном, обыденные дела: утром встаем и – кто-то идет на учебу, тренировку, кто-то на работу...

Для передачи всяких обычных действий, повседневных, повторяющихся событий, в английском языке используется простое настоящее время (simple present tense).

Вспомним, как ведут себя английские глаголы в простом настоящем. У них всего две формы. Одна форма совпадает с основой, а для третьего лица, то есть для he, she и it, требуется окончание -s.
	The Simple Present Простое настоящее время

	The Singular - Единственное число

	I read and write. -  
 You read and write. -  
Не reads and writes. – 
 She reads and writes. - 
	Я читаю и пишу. 
Ты читаешь и пишешь. 
Он читает и пишет. 
Она читает и пишет.

	The Plural - Множественное число

	We read and write. -  You read and write. -  They read and write. - 
	Мы читаем и пишем. 
Вы читаете и пишете. 
Они читают и пишут.


Notes – Примечания
1. Если основа глагола заканчивается на одиночную букву -у, в третьем лице пишется окончание -ies.

study ['stʌdi] - studies ['stʌdiz]
carry ['kæri] - carries ['kæriz]
try [trai] - tries [traiz]
marry ['mæri] - marries ['mæriz] 
My friend goes to the stadium. – Мой друг ходит на стадион.
He tries to do exercises on it. - Он старается делать там упражнения.
The referee judges the match. – Арбитр судит матч.
2. После глухого звука окончание -s звучит как [s]: 
puts [puts] - кладет, ставит; 
takes [teiks] - берет; 
stops [stops] - останавливает; 
laughs [lɑ:fs] - смеется.

I think that it helps me to win. – Я думаю, что это помогает мне побеждать. She sets records. - Она устанавливает рекорды.
He defeats the opponent. – Он побеждает соперника.
3. После гласного и после звонкого согласного должно звучать [z]: 
comes [kʌmz] - приходит;
brings [briŋz] - приносит, приводит; 
leaves [li:vz] - уходит, покидает.

Не comes back late. - Он возвращается поздно.
Не brings his friends. - Он приводит друзей.

4. После шипяще-звенящих звуков в третьем лице добавляется окончание -es, которое образует слог [iz]: 
catches ['kæʧiz] - ловит; 
watches ['woʧiz] - смотрит, наблюдает; 
loses ['lu:ziz] - теряет;
wishes ['wiʃiz] - желает.
Tim catches the ball. - Тим ловит мяч.
He watches football match. - Он смотрит футбольный матч.
He wishes to visit Russia. - Он хочет посетить Россию.

Sport is an important part of my life. – Спорт –важная часть моей жизни.
I can swim. - Я умею плавать.
You can play chess. - Вы умеете играть в шахматы.
They can ski. - Они могут кататься на лыжах.

Can прежде всего сообщает о физических способностях и об умении что-либо делать.

We can see and hear. - Мы можем видеть и слышать.
Birds can fly. - Птицы могут летать.
You can speak Russian. - Вы можете говорить по-русски.

Can выражает также желание, возможность и моральное право что-либо предпринимать или не предпринимать.

Can you wait? - Вы можете подождать?
I cannot forgive her. - Я не могу простить ее.
You can take this money. - Можете взять эти деньги.

	The Simple Present
Простое настоящее время

	The Singular
	The Plural

	I can ride a bicycle.
You can ride a bicycle.
He can ride a bicycle.
	We can ride a bicycle.
You can ride a bicycle.
They can ride a bicycle.


В вопросах can просто "выносится" в начало предложения. Для отрицательного ответа ставим после глагола частицу not: образуется одно слово cannot ['kænot].

Can you help me? - Вы можете помочь мне?
Yes, I can. - Да, могу.
Can he come now? - Он может прийти сейчас?
No, he cannot. - Нет, не может.
Can they stay for a day? - Они могут остаться на день?
No, they cannot. - Нет, не могут.

Notes - Примечания

1. В разговоре идет постоянное сравнение с помощью better ['betǝ] (лучше), best [best] (лучше всего, больше всего), а также оборота as ... as (так же, 
1. There [image: image1.wmf]

 a little salt in the salt-cellar.

2. [image: image2.wmf]

 there saucers?

3. There [image: image3.wmf]

 different kinds of jam in the jars.

4. There [image: image4.wmf]

 everything for a good lunch.

Exercise 3. Make these sentences interrogative. - Сделайте эти предложения вопросительными.

1. [image: image5.wmf]

 There is a gym in the school.

2. [image: image6.wmf]

 There is a playground.

3. [image: image7.wmf]

 There are grounds for sports.

4. [image: image8.wmf]

 There is a back door.

5. [image: image9.wmf]

 There is a diningroom.

6. [image: image10.wmf]

 There is a swimming-pool in the school.

7. [image: image11.wmf]

 There are flowers in every room.

8. [image: image12.wmf]

 There is a board in every room.

9. [image: image13.wmf]

 There are pictures in the rooms.

10. [image: image14.wmf]

 There are computers in the laboratories.

Занятие 8.

Модальный глагол Can



Grammar - Грамматика

Глагол can переводится как мочь, уметь. Очень нужное слово. И простое, хотя его и называют "особым" глаголом. Первая особенность в том, что в настоящем времени у can одна форма для всех лиц. Второе: can работает в паре с обычными глаголами, при этом они используются без частицы to.


I like to take part in sports competitions. – Мне нравится принимать участие в соревнованиях.

I play in our school football team. – Я играю в школьной футбольной команде.

First of all sport builds character. – Прежде всего, занятие спортом формирует характер.

The simple present - и самое простое, и самое нужное грамматическое время. В принципе, можно объясниться с иностранцами, не зная других времен. Пусть это будет "примитивный" язык, но вас поймут. 
Так, I go укажет на будущее, если добавить tomorrow (завтра), next week (на следующей неделе), in a week (через неделю) или что-нибудь в этом роде. Yesterday (вчера), last week (на прошлой неделе) или, например, two days ago (два дня назад) дадут понять, что вы уже ходили или ездили куда-то.

Но, конечно, мы постараемся говорить как можно правильнее. Запомним еще одну простую грамматическую вещь: помимо обыденных действий, простое настоящее время используется, когда нужно высказать "вечные истины".
The sun rises in the east. - Солнце встает на востоке.
It sets in the west. - Оно заходит на западе.
The earth is round. - Земля круглая.
It goes round the sun. - Она вращается вокруг солнца.
Two and two is four. - Два плюс два - четыре.
People like travelling. - Люди любят путешествовать.

По-русски мы иногда используем глагол настоящего времени, чтобы выразить какое-нибудь будущее действие. В английском такое допустимо - с глаголами движения.

Our sport team leaves tomorrow. – Моя команда уезжает завтра.
We play early tomorrow morning. - Мы играем завтра рано утром.

Exercises - упражнения.
Exercise 1. 
Choose the correct form. - Выберите правильную форму.
Начало формы

1. Tim (go, goes) to school six days a week.

2. He (have, has) a cup of tea for breakfast.

3. Some people (go, goes) to their work by bus.

4. Christopher Robin (visit, visits) the Zoo.

5. Alice (come, comes) into the hall.

6. She (see, sees) a little table.

7. We (write, writes) letters on paper in ink.

8. The teacher (bring, brings) some books.

9. You (take, takes) a coin and (give, gives) it to them.

10. They (give, gives) it back to me.Конец формы
Занятие 6.

Глаголы  Do / Make 



Grammar - Грамматика

Рассмотрим глаголы do и make. Мы объединили их, поскольку они имеют одинаковое значение - делать. А в чем разница? 
Глагол do - это делать в самом широком смысле.

All sportsmen do the special exercises in training. – Все спортсмены выполняют специальные упражнения на тренировке.
Do your homework. - Делайте домашнее задание.
What can I do for you? - Что я могу сделать для вас?
I have nothing to do. - Мне нечем заняться. 
Do what the coach  tells you. - Делайте то, что говорит вам тренер.
Do it now. - Сделайте это сразу.

Глагол make используется в более узком смыckе: производить, изготавливать - руками, с помощью инструментов, на станках.

He makes the sport equipment for the performance. – Он готовит спортивный инвентарь к выступлению.
The factory makes cars. - Завод выпускает машины.
У нас было упражнение с примерами: какие вещи из чего делаются. Мы использовали глагол make. На этикетках, ярлыках пишется слово made [meid], производное от make, это причастие сделанный.


There is a monument in the square. - На площади стоит памятник.

Exercises - Упражнения
Exercise 1. Put in is or are. - Вставьте is или are.

1. There [image: image15.wmf]

 a lot of schools in our city.

2. My school [image: image16.wmf]

 in Oak Street.

3. There [image: image17.wmf]

 twenty rooms in the school.

4. Our classroom [image: image18.wmf]

 on the first floor.

5. There [image: image19.wmf]

 a board on the front wall.

6. There [image: image20.wmf]

 three windows.

7. There [image: image21.wmf]

 twenty-five children in our class.

8. There [image: image22.wmf]

 twenty-five desks in the room.

9. There [image: image23.wmf]

 a few pictures on the wall.

10. Most children [image: image24.wmf]

 good learners.

Exercise 2. Put is or are in the blanks. - Вставьте is или are в пропуски.

1. There [image: image25.wmf]

 three rooms in our flat.

2. There [image: image26.wmf]

 a table in the kitchen.

3. There [image: image27.wmf]

 four chairs round it.

4. There [image: image28.wmf]

 a shelf on the wall above the table.

5. [image: image29.wmf]

 there a stove in the kitchen?

6. There [image: image30.wmf]

 some plates and dishes on the table.

7. There [image: image31.wmf]

 sandwiches on one of the dishes.

8. There [image: image32.wmf]

 meat, cheese and sausage on the plates

9. There [image: image33.wmf]

 a few spoons and knives on the table.

10. There [image: image34.wmf]

 some cups and a tea-pot.

There is a treadmill in the sport hall. – В спортивном зале есть беговая дорожка.

There is the student hostel near the Central park of rest and culture. – Студенческое общежитие находится возле Центрального парка культуры и отдыха.
Если объектов много, вместо is необходимо поставить are.

There are many sportsmen in the sport hall. – В спортивном зале много спортсменов.
Оборот there is подходит и для описания обычных вещей. Обратите внимание, что при переводе на русский мы иногда можем обойтись без глагола.

There is a table in the room. - В комнате (стоит) стол. 
There is a picture on the wall. - На стене (висит) картина.

По примерам видно, что переводить фразы с оборотом there is удобнее с конца.

There is a treadmill in the sport hall.. - В спортивном зале есть беговая дорожка.
There are apples on the tree. - На дереве яблоки.
Notes – Примечания

1. А если в одном предложении перечисляются и стулья, и кровати, и стол... Если есть и множественное число, и единственное, с чего начинать предложение, с there is или с there are? Ответ: Смотрим на самое первое существительное. Если первым идет table, начинаем с there is. Если первыми стоят chairs, необходимо there are.

There is a table and two chairs in the room. - В комнате есть стол и два стула.

There are four chairs, a table and a sofa. - Есть четыре стула, стол и диван.
2. По-русски мы говорим на улице такой-то, англичане говорят в улице такой-то. Если вы "по привычке" скажете on the street, ошибки не будет: это допустимый вариант.
He lives in Park Street. - Он живет на Парк-стрит.

Made in UK - сделано в Соединенном Королевстве
Made in Canada - сделано в Канаде
Made in USA - сделано в США

Следующие фразы выражают одну и ту же мысль, но в каждом случае второй вариант звучит более естественно, так как нас не интересует, кто именно производит действие, нам важен процесс или результат. Если буквально, is made - это есть сделанный.

We make butter from milk. Butter is made from milk. - Масло делается из молока.  
We make houses of brick. Houses are made of brick. - Дома строятся из кирпича.  
We make spoons of steel. Spoons are made of steel. - Ложки делаются из стали.

Вспомогательный глагол Do / Does
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Вы занимаетесь спортом? А английским? А вы любите соревноваться? Чтобы задать подобный вопрос, англичане прибегают к помощи do [du:]. Глагол do выступает в таких случаях только как вспомогательное слово, никакого "делания" он не обозначает.

Do you like to do sports? - Вы любите мороженое? 

Do you help your sport team? - Ты помогаешь своей команде? 

Do they play football? - Они играют в футбол?

Ответим на последний вопрос - сначала утвердительно, затем отрицательно. Частица not (не) ставится после do.
Yes, they do. - Да, играют.
No, they do not. - Нет, не играют.

Обратите внимание: в ответах do замещает play - тот глагол, который стоит в вопросе. Теперь посмотрим, как звучат вопрос и ответы в общении со вторым лицом - с вами. 
Do you speak English? - Вы говорите по-английски? 
Yes, I do. - Да, говорю. 
No, I do not. - Нет, не говорю.

Когда вопрос о ком-либо или о чем-либо - о третьем лице в единственном числе - вместо do используется does [dʌz].
Does he learn English? - Он учит английский? 
Yes, he does. - Да, учит. 
Does he do sports? - Он занимается спортом? 

No, he does not. - Нет, не занимается.

Составим два полных отрицательных предложения, используя только что полученные краткие ответы.
They do not play football. - Они не играют в футбол.
He does not do sports.  - Он не занимается спортом.
Когда в предложении есть does, окончание -s добавлять к основному глаголу не нужно.
She likes jam. 

Does she like fruit? 

She eats oranges. 

Does she eat bananas? 

He keeps dogs. 

He does not keep cats.

Exercises – Упражнения

Exercise 1. Answer the questions. - Ответьте на вопросы, используя местоимение вместо существительного.

	 
	Example:
	What colour are buses in London?
They are red.


1. What colour is grass?
2.  What colour is the sky?

3.  What colour is the sun?

4.  What colour is an apple?

5.  What colour is snow?

6. What colour are roses?

7.  What colour is Mr Bliss's new car?

8.  What colour are the wheels of his new car?

9.  What colour is the flag of Russia? 
Exercise 2. Choose the correct form. - Выберите правильную форму.

Начало формы
1. (Do, Does) Alice begin to cry?

2. What (do, does) she think at first?

3. What (do, does)  she realize?

4. What (do, does)  she hear?

5. (Do, Does) walruses eat little girls?

6. (Do, Does) mice like cats?

7. (Do, Does) the mouse know the way out of the pool?

8. Why (do, does)  Alice ask in French?

Конец формы
Exercise 3. Make questions. - Постройте вопросительные предложения. Глагол остается тот же, новое подлежащее приведено в скобках.

	 
	Example:
	Ann goes to school. (Tim)
Does Tim go to school?


1. Alice swims in the pool. (the Mouse)

2.  Cats catch mice. (dogs)

3.  Alice goes into the low hall. (her sister)
4.  Cats do not like to swim. (a fish)
5.  I wash my hands before lunch. (you)

6.  People visit their friends. (animals)

7.  Lions and tigers eat meat. (cows)

8.  A bicycle has two wheels. (a car)

9.  Tim plays football and tennis. (Ann)

10.  He takes a shower in the morning. (his son) 
Занятие 7.
Оборот There is / There are
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Описывая заморскую страну, англичанин воспользуется оборотом there is, который можно передать на русский язык целым набором фраз: есть, имеется, стоит, лежит, висит... 

С помощью there is в разговор вводится новая тема, предмет, который мы до этого не обсуждали. 
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